
TAPED 
The License Commission held its regular monthly meeting at 6:00 p.m. on Wednesday, March 
21, 2012, in the G.A.R. Room at City Hall.  Present were Chairman Scott H. McDuffy; 
Commissioners Paul D. Sullivan, Joshua J. Wood and Kathy Kenney; and Alternate Fred 
Fontaine.  Also present were Asst. City Solicitor Kate Feodoroff; License Agent Lieut. Paul 
Bonanca; and Administrative Assistant Bonnie Tucker. 
 
1. Approval of the Minutes of the License Commission Meeting of February 15, 2012.               
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Sullivan to approve the minutes of the meeting of 
February 15, 2012.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Fontaine.  All members voting 
in the affirmative, the motion carried. 
 
2. Approval of the following police officers as license agents for the month of April 2012:  

Lieuts. Paul Bonanca and Kenneth Legrice; Sgts. George Khoury, Frank Vardaro, 
Kenneth Lofstrom and David Dickinson; Dets. Tom Hyland and Nazaire Paul; and 
Officer Scott Uhlman.  

 
A motion was made by Commissioner Sullivan to approve the police officers as listed as license 
agents for the month of April, 2012.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Kenney.  All 
members voting in the affirmative, the motion carried. 
 
3. Requests for Special One-day Permits: 
 
There were no requests for Special One-day Permits. 
 
4. Hearing (continued from meeting of February 15, 2012) on the request from Polish White 

Eagle Club of Montello, Inc. for two (2) coin-operated video skeeball machines to be 
added to the Automatic Amusement Device license (currently licensed for 1 Pool table). 

 
Present was Joe Lazorko, 17 Lucy Lane.   
 
It was reviewed that Mr. Lazorko was before the board last month and the matter was tabled in 
order to seek a clarification from the ABCC concerning their decision restricting coin-operated 
games after finding gambling violations at the Club last year.  The Adm. Asst. reviewed that Lisa 
Lordin from the ABCC had contacted the office to say that the decision only applied to games 
that are used for gambling and the skeeball games do not fall under the definition for that 
decision. 
 
Paperwork being in order, a motion was made by Commissioner Sullivan to approve the two 
coin-operated video skeeball games.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Fontaine.  All 
members present voting in the affirmative, the motion carried. 
 
5. Hearing on the request from Trung V. Dang dba Pho A Dong for a Common Victualer 

license at 379 Belmont Street. 
 



2 
 

Present was Trung V. Dang, 100 Mountford Road, Hull, who stated he plans to operate a 
restaurant serving Vietnamese and Chinese food.  Hours will be from 10:00 a.m. to 10:00 p.m.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Sullivan to approve the Common Victualer license 
pending receipt of the department inspection approvals.  The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Fontaine.  All members voting in the affirmative, the motion carried. 
 
6. Hearing on the request Tenka, Inc. dba Tenka Sushi for a Common Victualer license at 

793 Crescent Street. 
 
Present was Jia Zheng Lu, 15 Lunt Street. 
 
Ms. Tucker reviewed that Tenka Sushi held a beer and wine license which was not renewed for 
2011.  Mr. Lu has stated he was not aware that he had to renew the Common Victualer license 
and operated for the entire year without a license.   
 
Paperwork being in order, a motion was made by Commissioner Kenney to approve the license 
which motion was seconded by Commissioner Sullivan.  All members voting in the affirmative, 
the motion carried. 
  
7. Hearing on the request from Joseph and Debra Sawaya dba Joseph Sawaya Enterprises 

for a Common Victualer license at 331 Oak Street.  (D.W. Field Golf Snack Bar) 
 
Commissioner Kenney recused herself from this matter. 
 
Present were Joseph and Debra Sawaya, 39 Belcher Avenue.   
 
Mr. Sawaya reviewed that the license is for the snack bar at D.W. Golf Course which has a 
counter with a few stools.  It is open during the golf season from 6:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.  All of 
the required department inspections have now been completed and approved.   
 
Chairman McDuffy recalled that there were several issues last year and Mr. Sawaya stated all of 
the upgrades to the Electrical and Plumbing were done after the golf course closed for the 
season.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Sullivan to approve the license.  The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner Wood.  With Commissioners McDuffy, Sullivan, Wood and 
Fontaine voting in the affirmative, the motion carried. 
 
8. Hearing on the request from Todd Copeland dba Copeland Auto Discount to transfer the 

Class II License to Sell Second Hand Motor Vehicles from 1554 Main Street to 97 
Manley Street. 

 
Present was Attorney Wayne Mathews, 529 Pearl Street and his client, Todd Copeland, 27 
Wingate Road, Wellesley.   
 



3 
 

Attorney Mathews reviewed the request which is to transfer the location of the license from 1554 
Main Street to a portion of the property at 97 Manley Street per the plans submitted.  There are 
spaces for 64 vehicles with 11 spaces left for customers and employees.  There is also a 14’ by 
46’ office area which is in the front part of the parking lot.  The body shop is owned by John 
Santilli.   
 
Attorney Mathews stated that all warranty repairs to vehicles will be done at the Copeland 
Toyota facility on West Chestnut Street.  Attorney Mathews stated that due to a 
miscommunication between his client and the License Agent, the location has not been 
inspected.  He asked that the license be approved subject to the inspection by the agent.   
 
Paperwork being in order, a motion was made by Commissioner Sullivan to approve the transfer 
of the location of the license pending an inspection being completed by the agent.  The motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Fontaine.  All members voting in the affirmative, the motion 
carried. 
 
9. Hearing (continued from meeting of February 15, 2012) on the charge brought by the 

local police against Todd Copeland dba Copeland Auto Discount, that the licensed used 
car business located at 1554 Main Street is not being operated. 

 
Attorney Mathews was present. 
 
Attorney Feodoroff stated the City will ask that this be dismissed in light of the transfer of the 
location of the license which was approved in the previous agenda item.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Kenney to dismiss the charge based on the approval of the 
transfer of the license.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sullivan. All members 
voting in the affirmative, the motion carried.  
 
10. Hearing (postponed from meeting of February 15, 2012) on the charge brought by the 

local police against Arcangela Lima dba M & T Auto Body, Sales and Rental, holder of a 
Class II Used Car Dealer license at 691-701 Montello Street, of an alleged violation of 
M.G.L. Chapter 140, Section 62 - failure to properly maintain a Used Car Record Book. 

 
Present was Attorney Michael Darche, 403 North Montello Street and his client, Arcangela 
Lima. 
 
The following persons were sworn by Attorney Feodoroff: 
 
Officer Scott Uhlman, Brockton Police 
Arcangela Lima 
 
On direct examination by Attorney Feodoroff, Officer Uhlman stated his report was written after 
Officer Amaral took a police report from Jean Morisseau concerning a car he purchased from M 
& T Auto Sales.  After Mr. Morisseau paid for the vehicle, it was sold to someone else and he 
was defrauded out of $4,500.  A receipt was issued to Mr. Morisseau on M & T Stationary.  The 



4 
 

vehicle sale was not recorded in M & T’s Used Car Record book on either of two times it was 
sold. 
 
Officer Uhlman stated he is aware that M & T Auto was prosecuted by the Commission for 
violations of the used vehicle record book.  To the best of his knowledge, the failure to enter this 
sale into the used vehicle record book occurred in 2008.  Officer Amaral’s report came to his 
attention in 2011.  Charges were filed on 10/26/11 against Leonildo (Manu) DosSantos for 
larceny.  Mr. DosSantos was acting as an agent for M & T Auto.   
 
Officer Uhlman further stated that Mr. DosSantos took money for a vehicle from the victim, 
Morisseau, who went to jail for awhile.  He gave DosSantos some money to have work done to 
the car while he was away.  This went on for a couple of years and when Mr. Morrisseau came 
back, he wanted his car and was told that the car had been sold and shipped overseas and he was 
not getting his money back.  At that time, (Manu) Dos Santos had taken off.   
 
In response to questions from Attorney Feodoroff, Officer Uhlman stated that in 2009, he was 
the witness on the M & T case brought before the Commission.  His report at that time did not 
include this vehicle because there was no record of it.   
 
Attorney Darche stated he and Officer Uhlman are substantially in agreement on the facts.  He 
indicated Officer Uhlman showed him the record books during the period of time from 2006 to 
2009 and he knows the deplorable condition they were in.  He then provided a copy of the 
discrepancies listed in Officer Uhlman’s report heard in 2009.  He indicated it is his 
understanding that some agreement was reached and the number of vehicles was reduced.  He 
stated there had been a flood at the shop and the original book was destroyed.  Ms. Lima had 
made an attempt to transfer some of the information to another book.  He stated his client 
understands the importance of having the record book to keep track of the vehicles going in and 
out of the lot.  He is in agreement that Mr. DosSantos stole money from Jean Morisseau who had 
actually paid $8,300 to M & T Auto.   
 
Attorney Darche stated this is not a new case and that he and Officer Uhlman have a professional 
disagreement on whether this is a new case or not.  His opinion is that this is evidence of how 
poorly the books were kept from 2006 to 2009.  It is his understanding that they are here this 
evening on the charge that Ms. Lima has improperly kept her record book and he sees this as 
already being adjudicated by the Commission in December, 2009. 
 
Attorney Darche stated that Ms. Lima is a single parent with two children.  He asked the 
Commission to take this into consideration before revoking the license.   
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Wood, Attorney Darche stated that all of the listed 
discrepancies submitted were part of Officer Uhlman’s 2009 case.   
 
Attorney Feodoroff stated it is the City’s position that in light of the new criminal charges filed, 
the Commission was not made aware of the consequences.  She reviewed that with this charge, 
there is an actual felony and there is no issue of double jeopardy where this is not criminal court.  
The Commission needs to be made aware of the new charges that were filed as a consequence to 



5 
 

this omission.  Secondly, since the 2009 inspection, only two cars have been sold from this 
establishment.   
 
Commissioner Wood asked Attorney Feodoroff is she is conceding that there is no new bad 
behavior on Ms. Lima’s part, that it is the same old book and that the Commission should 
consider a new penalty because Mr. DosSantos was charged with criminal conduct arising from a 
more recent investigation that brought to light the same old conduct that was talked about before.   
In response, Attorney Feodoroff stated the Commission was not made aware of the felony that 
occurred.  Commissioner Wood suggested this is ancillary to the license violation being dealt 
with this evening.  Attorney Feodoroff stated it is based on the argument that originally, the 
disposition was for sloppy bookkeeping due to the flood as opposed to an intentional act by an 
agent of the company.  This is the result of a December 2011 investigation.  Officer Uhlman then 
referred Attorney Feodoroff to Officer Amaral’s report and indicated there was also a 
discrepancy in an entry to the book at a later date.  
 
Commissioner Wood asked Attorney Feodoroff if she gave a copy of the report to the license 
holder when she gave notice to the licensee and she indicated it is her understanding that 
Attorney Darche had a copy of the report.  Attorney Darche stated Officer Uhlman had provided 
him with the report.   
 
Attorney Feodoroff stated that in addition to this being an intentional act by an agent of the 
company, the sloppy conditions continue and there is a spectrum of offenses and this is the 
City’s position.  Commissioner Wood indicated there is no distinction made in the code between 
intentional and unintentional.  He questioned her as to whether she is adding this theory and 
bringing up largely old conduct and then trying to bring that together with this much later, 
different type of omission from a single record in a record book.  Attorney Feodoroff stated the 
penalty is often times based on what the actions of the agent were.   
 
Attorney Darche acknowledge that this criminal charge started in October 2011 and they are in 
agreement that the board did not know about that specific larceny at the time of the hearing.  
After talking with Attorney Creedon who originally represented Ms. Lima, it is his 
understanding that the board was concerned about a number of matters including vehicles going 
through this lot without being checked in or out.  He indicated they cannot escape this new 
information.  He asked Ms. Lima to tell the board about some of her emotional problems as a 
result of her relationship with Mr. DosSantos. 
 
Ms. Lima stated she had originally bought the business because Mr. DosSantos told her he would 
help her in operating the business and that he had experience and she had none.  She lives there 
with her two children.  Attorney Darche stated DosSantos stole money from her.   
 
Attorney Darche asked if shifting away from the 2006-2009 problems, was worth taking away 
her right to earn a living.    
 
In response to questions from Attorney Feodoroff, Ms. Lima stated there is a repair business on 
the property which she can generate income from.  From 2009 to the present, only two vehicles 



6 
 

have been sold.  After the hearing in 2010 when she had to get rid of many vehicles, she sold 10 
cars at the auction.  The license was suspended for a month at that time.   
 
Attorney Darche indicated the number of cars sold over the past couple of years should not be an 
issue for the Commission to consider.   
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Wood, Attorney Feodoroff stated the general laws 
require that if the record book has not been properly maintained, it is an automatic revocation of 
the license. 
 
Attorney Darche asked the Commission to consider inviting Officer Uhlman to go to the location 
on a regular basis to make sure the required information is being documented.  
 
Commissioner Kenney asked how long Ms. Lima has been handling the business on her own and 
she indicated it has been about eight months.  She has not sold any vehicles during that time. 
 
Commissioner Wood stated he is troubled by the City’s position in an attempt to bring back an 
allegation that has already been in front of the board and to try to package it along with what is a 
violation of some missing material with such rave consequences based solely on the fact that 
criminal consequences not having much to do with Ms. Lima arose out of the case already heard.  
He stated he is worried that if they set this precedent, it allows the City to keep coming back 
based on theoretical criminal offenses that might arise from any particular license violation and 
this would open up license holders to unforeseen and horrible liability.  He further stated the 
whole notion of why they keep a license book and the reason she was held so badly responsible 
back in 2009 is because these types of things are expected to happen when you don’t do it right.  
He indicated the fact that the predictable thing happened is not a new fact that should be 
considered by this Commission.  He stated this violation should be considered the missing 
material of what has already been considered. 
 
Commissioner Kenney indicated the Commission does that now when such as when an owner of 
a club is held responsible for the manager who doesn’t follow the license rules.  Commissioner 
Wood indicated he is worried that they had a hearing on this violation and they are talking about 
an independent criminal charge that arose out of this civil liability and they are asking the 
Commission to reconsider the old charges based on that fact.  It is his opinion that this has 
already been considered and is a separate issue.   
 
Commissioner Fontaine stated he agrees with Commissioner Wood. 
 
Commissioner Wood stated he is not saying they should not consider this if it is properly before 
the board and that it is something but it is not the same as what has already been adjudicated by 
this board.   
 
Chairman McDuffy asked Attorney Feodoroff if the State has ever made any exceptions because 
of this law and she indicated not that she knows of and the language is unambiguous.  She stated 
that whether or not this case constitutes a violation is up to the board to decide but if it does 



7 
 

constitute a violation, the penalty that must be imposed is revocation and any other penalty 
would be inappropriate under the law. 
 
Attorney Darche then made the commitment on the record that he will stand by his client for 
however long it takes to make sure the records are done right.   
 
Edgton Graham, 6A Brian Road, Chestnut Hill, stated he is trying to help Tina to take over the 
business.   
 
Attorney Feodoroff advised Mr. Graham that Ms. Lima would have to transfer the license to him 
if he is going to take over the management. 
 
Chairman McDuffy acknowledged concern because of the difficulties expressed, however, 
reminded the licensee that there is a law that needs to be followed.  He indicated he would 
consider giving Ms. Lima a trial period for 3 to 6 months and if there are any further issues, the 
license will have to be revoked.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Wood to table the matter for a year.   
 
Commissioner Kenney stated she would like to amend the motion to table the matter for six 
months, until the October meeting.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Wood.  All 
members voting in the affirmative, the motion carried.    
 
Chairman McDuffy advised Ms. Lima that the business will be monitored.     
     
11. POSTPONED  Hearing on the charge brought by the local police against Soares Club, 

LLC dba Bar Dino’s – Lucindo Soares, Manager, 1002 Main Street, of an alleged 
violation of ABCC Rule 2.05(2), to wit:  “No licensee for the sale of alcoholic beverages 
shall permit any disorder, disturbance or illegality to take place in or on the licensed 
premises.  The licensee shall be responsible therefor, whether present or not.”, reported 
on November 19, 2011.   

 
12. Hearing on the charge brought by the local police against Max’s Hidout, Inc. – Michael J. 

Asack, Manager, of an alleged violation of ABCC Rule 2.05(2), to wit:  “No licensee for 
the sale of alcoholic beverages shall permit any disorder, disturbance or illegality to take 
place in or on the licensed premises.  The licensee shall be responsible therefor, whether 
present or not.”, reported on February 4, 2012.   

 
Present were Attorney David Asack, 95 West Elm Street and Louis Asack, 15 Agnew Avenue.   
 
The following persons were then sworn by Attorney Feodoroff: 
 
Officer Nazaire Paul, Brockton Police Department 
Louis Asack 
 



8 
 

On direct examination by Attorney Feodoroff, Det. Nazaire Paul stated that on February 4, 2012, 
he was called to respond to Max’s Hideout at 68 Field Street.  He arrived at approximately 12:20 
a.m.  At 12:19 a.m., Officers Devine and Schlieman were working the Impact Overtime Shift and 
were in the area of Spark and Field Streets when they heard a loud commotion/disturbance 
coming from the parking lot of Max’s.  They called dispatch to inform them of this.  In addition, 
the Brockton Police received a call from a neighbor who stated she heard a gunshot and when 
she looked out of her window she saw people fighting and someone was on the ground.  Det. 
Paul stated that when he arrived, he saw two groups of people who were still very loud, however, 
he did not witness anyone fighting.   Upon interviewing several of the individuals outside, one 
male said he was jumped and he had a cut on his hand and his t-shirt had blood stains on it.  
They checked people for warrants and nothing was found.  They asked the victim if he wanted to 
go to the hospital and he said no.  The parking lot was cleared.   
 
Det. Paul stated he and Det. Smith were in plain clothes and went inside the establishment where 
they interviewed more patrons.  When they first entered through the front door and as he 
approached the bar, he observed the bartender behind the bar cleaning.  There were about five 
patrons sitting at the bar.  He could hear the bartender talking to the people at the bar and she 
said she didn’t call the police because they need the 2:00 license and she needed to get the “f” 
out of here before 2 a.m.  Attorney Feodoroff had Det. Paul repeat the statement he heard the 
bartender make.  After hearing that, Det. Paul stated he went to the bar and the bartender 
identified herself as Kimberly Hanrahan.  He showed her his badge and he explained to her that 
she should call the police if something like that takes place in the bar and it could save 
someone’s life.  She denied seeing anything take place inside and denied saying anything.  After 
they finished talking to Ms. Hanrahan, he went to talk to the bouncer who identified himself as 
William Hargrove.  He asked Mr. Hargrove what was going on and why he didn’t call police.  
Hargrove stated he was speaking with Mr. Asack on the telephone.  Mr. Hargrove then told him 
there had been some technical problem with the music.  Some of the people were getting upset 
with each other and arguing and he followed them outside.  He said he didn’t call the police 
because he was too busy doing other stuff.   
 
In response to further questions from Attorney Feodoroff, Det. Paul stated when  he asked the 
bartender about the statement he overheard her make, she denied saying it and she said she didn’t 
see anything take place inside to make her call the police.  As far as his other observations, there 
were smashed windows at the front entry which he thought had been damaged that night.  Mr. 
Hargrove told him the windows had been smashed for six months and Det. Paul told him they are 
not safe for the patrons and that they should be fixed.  He checked with other agents who told 
him it is up to the Building Department to charge them for the broken windows.  He stated the 
windows were fixed within a few days.   
 
On cross examination by Attorney Asack, Det. Paul indicated he told the bartender that if there 
was some type of disturbance, she needed to call the police and she said she wasn’t aware of a 
disturbance.  Officers Schleiman and Devine had responded quickly because they were not far 
from Max’s.  No one was charged or arrested.  There was no gun found at the scene and no 
gunshots detected by the City’s gunshot detector.  Det. Paul stated when the neighbor called, she 
reported a fight and someone on the ground.  As a result of his investigation, somebody was 
injured with a cut on his hand and a bloodstained t-shirt.  He did not witness this when it 



9 
 

happened.  The victim told him he was jumped.  He stated they could have made an arrest if the 
bartender had called before the patrons went outside.  He knows that it happened inside because 
Mr. Hargrove told him there were some arguments with those people inside and he followed 
them outside.        
 
In response to questions from Commissioner Wood, Det. Paul indicated when he walked in, the 
bartender was talking to her patrons and she said she didn’t call the police because they need 
their 2:00 license and she wanted to get out of there before 2:00.  Based on the way it was said, it 
sounded like she thought it was the type of event that she would have otherwise called the police 
for. 
 
Attorney Asack then called on Louis Asack who stated he had spoken with Kim and his bouncer, 
William Hargrove, and he was told that there was a disagreement and the two parties were 
separated.  Will followed the first party outside because they never throw both parties outside.  
As the first party was leaving, he went back inside.  Everything was closing and the lights were 
on.  He stated by 12:45 everyone had left.  The people sitting at the bar were not patrons but 
were performers.  The bartender told him there was no problem and that there was an argument 
and the people left.  There were no physical altercations.  As the club closed, there were still 
people outside and another verbal altercation started outside and before anything happened, the 
police showed up.  Mr. Asack stated he had applied for a 2:00 a.m. license prior to this incident.  
He had not told any of his employees about the application.  His bartender had no knowledge of 
his application.  He asked the bartender about the comment heard by Det. Paul and she indicated 
she had not said anything about the 2 a.m. license and she told him Det. Paul said it, not her.  Mr. 
Asack stated Kim insisted more than three to five times that she did not say that and Det. Paul 
kept insisting that she did say it.   Attorney Asack then read the bartender’s statement from Det. 
Paul’s report.  Mr. Asack stated that they leave the bar by 1:20 a.m. and the bar is vacant.  Mr. 
Hargrove told him he was escorting parties out and just doing his job.  There was a verbal 
argument and he was handling it but nothing had happened.   
 
In response to questions from Attorney Feodoroff, Mr. Asack stated he spoke to Kim on the 
night of the incident and she kept insisting that she said she didn’t call the police and the police 
officer kept insisting that she said something that she didn’t say and she kept trying to correct 
him.  Kim has been employed for him for twenty years and works five days a week.  Mr. 
Hargrove has worked for him since 1999 and works every Thursday, Friday and Saturday when 
there is entertainment.  He told him he escorted one of the parties out.  He stated whenever there 
is a problem, they separate the parties and put one outside until they leave.   
 
Attorney Feodoroff read from Det. Paul’s report which stated, “Mr. Hargrove told me that things 
were going okay inside of the club until they had a little technical problem with the music.  He 
said people were getting tensed and an argument started inside the night club between a few 
people and they left to the parking lot.  He followed the group outside to try to keep the peace.” 
 
Mr. Asack stated he was following one group out and one remained inside.  He stated they 
separate the parties, whether it be one individual or 100.  Mr. Asack stated he sets procedure and 
holds his employees to those standards.  He stated Will would never take a chance and force 
everyone out of the bar and he is 100 percent certain his policies and procedures were followed.   



10 
 

In response to questions from Chairman McDuffy, Det. Paul stated that the victim was jumped 
outside.  Chairman McDuffy indicated that would mean that both sides were outside and Mr. 
Asack stated that Will went out with the party and everyone went to their vehicles.  Will then 
went back inside to clear the club.  Chairman McDuffy asked how the individual got blood on 
him if there had been no more fighting. 
 
Chairman McDuffy then asked Det. Paul if he knew Max’s had applied for a 2:00 a.m. license 
and Det. Paul stated he did not know this.  The Chairman then acknowledged that Mr. Asack had 
told him he was interested in a 2:00 a.m. closing but he was unaware that an application had been 
filed.  He asked Mr. Asack how Det. Paul would know that he was applying for a 2 a.m. license.   
 
Chairman McDuffy reviewed that the last time Mr. Asack was before the Commission, he told 
him how important it is to call the police if something occurs.  He indicated he is upset that the 
police were not called again.  Mr. Asack stated it wasn’t a physical altercation inside the bar.   
 
Commissioner Wood asked Mr. Asack if he would agree that if the Commission believes that if 
Kimberly Hanrahan said the things that Det. Paul is suggesting that she said that that would be 
evidence that not only did they know about it but permitted it and covered it up and Mr. Asack 
stated he would agree with that totally.   
 
Commissioner Kenney stated she has an issue and the Commission just had this conversation 
when another person left the establishment and was beaten up after a problem started inside the 
bar.  She expressed concern that this seems to be a pattern and that every time there is a 
disturbance but not a fight, Mr. Asack’s employees seem to think there is nothing wrong.   
 
Chairman McDuffy stated that if something does begin inside, whether it be an argument or a 
disturbance, and moves outside into the parking lot and something happens, the licensee will be 
held responsible.   
 
Maureen Martin came forward and stated she lives down the street from Max’s.  She indicated 
that for the most part, it is a quiet bar except for nights when there is entertainment and they 
“blow out” the parking lot.   She feels there should be two bouncers on the nights he has 
entertainment.   
 
With no further information presented, a motion was made by Commissioner Wood to find a 
violation.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Kenney.  All members voting in the 
affirmative, the motion carried. 
 
The history indicated there are no prior violations and this licensee has a 1:00 a.m. closing hour.  
Attorney Feodoroff stated she feels there is some validity to the neighbor’s argument that there 
should be a greater amount of staffing when there is live entertainment along with some sort of 
rollback for a short time.   
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Wood to place a letter of warning in the file.  The motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Sullivan.  All members present voting in the affirmative, the 
motion carried. 



11 
 

 
13. POSTPONED  Hearing on the charges brought by the local police against RJA 

Corporation dba Joe Angelo’s Café – Carl Simmons, Manager, 216 Main and 11 
Crescent Streets, of the following alleged violations reported on January 18, 2012: 

 
A. ABCC Rule 2.05(1), to wit: “…Gambling of any sort, except those games of 

chance authorized by the Legislature and/or local licensing authorities, shall not 
be permitted on any licensed premises.” 

  
B. ABCC Rule 2.05(2) – Permitting an illegality to take place on the licensed 

premises, to wit:   
(1) M.G.L. Chapter 140, Section 177A (5) – Automatic Amusement Devices 

licensed under this section shall be so installed as to be in open view at all 
times while in operation, and shall at all times be available for inspection. 

(2) M.G.L. Chapter 140, Section 177A(6) – No person keeping or offering 
for operation or allowed to be kept or offered for operation any automatic 
amusement device licensed under this section shall permit the same to be 
used for the purpose of gambling.   

  (3)   Allowing unlicensed Automatic Amusement Devices on the premises   
  (4) M.G.L. Chapter 270, Section 22 – Smoking in public places 
  

C. Brockton License Commission Rule 5, to wit:  “Gambling of any sort, except 
those games of chance authorized by the Legislature and local licensing 
authorities, shall not be permitted on any licensed premise.” 

 
D. Brockton License Commission Rule 16, to wit:  “All licenses and building 

certificates shall be posted in a conspicuous place on the premises, available at all 
times to the proper authorities. 

 
E. M.G.L. Chapter 138, Section 26 – failing to have an appointed manager as full 

authority and control of the premises. 
 
14. Communications 
 
Reports concerning violations at Emysafari Dance Club and Vulcan Bar will be scheduled for 
hearing.   
 
The members were invited to a meeting of the Municipal Licensing Corporation which will be 
held on April 24th at Wachusett Country Club. 
 
15. Any other business to properly come before the Commission. 
 
 a. Annual Report for 2011 
 
The Adm. Asst. reviewed that members had been sent a copy of the 2011 Annual Report and a 
vote needs to be taken in order to accept it or to make any changes. 



12 
 

A motion was made by Commissioner Kenney to accept the report as submitted which motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Sullivan.  All members voting in the affirmative, the motion 
carried. 
 

b. Request from RJA Corporation dba Joe Angelo’s to resubmit to ABCC 
application to appoint Joseph Angelo as the manager (Disapproved by ABCC on 
July 13, 2011 for failure to comply with Mass Tax Laws) 

 
The Adm. Asst. reviewed that Mr. Angelo has submitted a letter indicating they are now in 
compliance and a Form 43 has to be signed and sent in for reconsideration.  A new Form 43 was 
signed by the members. 
 
At the end of other business, Commissioner Fontaine stated he had sent the members a memo 
regarding the minutes of the License Commission meeting of January 18th and has a copy of the 
minutes with him.  He indicated a statement was made towards him and he wanted to have this 
clarified with the members who are present.  He stated he had sent the email to Bonnie and asked 
that she send it to Kate and Chief Gomes.  Chairman McDuffy asked what he was referring to 
and Commissioner Wood indicated the letter was regarding Commissioner Kelley’s departing 
remarks that mentioned something about Fred.  Commissioner Fontaine stated he had sent it to 
Bonnie and the members and indicated the statement is a misrepresentation about his character.  
He wants to make sure this is taken out of the January 18th minutes.  He indicated it said that he 
was against the members.  He then asked Attorney Feodoroff if she read it and Attorney 
Feodoroff indicated she does not recall the statement.  Commissioner Wood also stated he does 
not remember the statement.  Commissioner Fontaine stated he does not like it being said behind 
his back that he is something he is not. 
 
Commissioner Kenney indicated that was Commissioner Kelley’s opinion, whether it is right or 
wrong.  Ms. Tucker stated that Commissioner Fontaine had been sent the drafted minutes at the 
same time as the other members and had the opportunity to read them and question anything in 
them prior to the board approving them at the meeting on February 15, 2012.   
 
Commissioner Wood stated he was there when Mr. Kelley made his remarks and it was when he 
was in the process of stepping down from his position as a Commission member.  In the process 
of saying a lot of things about his time on the board, he mentioned that there was some 
communication made regarding attempts made by a board member to get the Clerk of the 
License Commission removed and Commissioner Kelley didn’t like that.  Commissioner Wood 
indicated no action was taken by the board and no comment was invited from any member of the 
board, it was just stated on the record.  He further stated that no members were asked to 
comment and as far as he knows, he was not aware of whom he was talking about and he wasn’t 
aware of whether or not he had an opinion on it.  Commissioner Wood stated that as far as 
imputing anyone’s character, in his opinion it didn’t.  He stated Commissioner Kelley’s 
comments were not made in the context of inviting anyone’s response.   
 
Commissioner Fontaine stated his name is there and if no name is mentioned, it is okay, but if it 
mentions his name, he takes it personally.  Attorney Feodoroff asked Commissioner Fontaine if 
he is worried about the public document of the Commission’s minutes and he stated he is.   



13 
 

Commissioner Wood asked if they can reopen the motion to approve the minutes and ask that 
Commissioner Fontaine’s name be stricken and replace it with “a certain commissioner.”  
 
Attorney Feodoroff stated that they can be posted as corrected minutes.   
 
Steve Bernard, 136 Highland Street, was present and stated when he read that section of the 
minutes, he found it quite surprising. He indicated he fully appreciates the hard work the 
Commission does and he is not making any judgment.   Mr. Bernard reviewed that the minutes 
clearly state that Mr. Fontaine is sabotaging the board and he feels this is pretty harsh.  He 
indicated that in getting to the point, as Commissioner Wood has stated, if it could be struck 
from the record as soon as possible then fewer people in the public will read that Fred Fontaine 
who has a fine reputation in the City, and may have other aspirations, would not be considered a 
hindrance to the board, to the City or any other organization that he might be a part of.  Mr. 
Bernard then read from the January 18, 2012 minutes which state, “There is one alternate 
member who is always trying to sabotage the integrity of the Board and called out Fred Fontaine 
as being that member.” 
 
Attorney Feodoroff stated that is irrelevant to any hearing and can be struck.  Mr. Bernard stated 
it is one man’s opinion and has very little to do with the work of the board and the public should 
not be aware of internal strife.  Mr. Bernard stated it is embarrassing.   
 
On Attorney Feodoroff’s advice, Commissioner Wood made a motion to re-open the motion to 
approve the minutes.  The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sullivan.  All members voting 
in the affirmative, the motion carried.   
 
Attorney Feodoroff advised Commissioner Fontaine that he should abstain where he has an 
interest in the matter.   
 
A subsequent motion was made by Commissioner Wood that the minutes be approved subject to 
the following changes beginning with the sentence, “He stated that he has seen firsthand the way 
some of these guys come in and berate her.”, which he stated is also irrelevant, all the way to the 
last sentence ending with the word “efforts” should all be stricken. 
 
Chairman McDuffy asked Commissioner Wood what the purpose of that would be and asked 
why not just take out Commissioner Fontaine’s name.  He indicated that Commissioner Kelley 
did make a statement and it is recorded.  Commissioner Wood stated he does not think that was a 
part of the official business of the License Commission and Attorney Feodoroff agreed.  
Commissioner Wood said it was something stated and he indicated he is not sure whether that 
should even be a part of the record where it is not a finding that was made and it wasn’t a part of 
anything.  As an example, Commissioner Wood stated it was just as if he stood up and said he 
wanted to tell them his feelings about hamburgers.  He indicated although it was said, he does 
not know if it should be part of the record.   
 
Ms. Tucker asked if it is to her to filter what goes into the minutes and Commissioner Wood 
responded that he thinks it was right for her to put it in the minutes and it is right for them to take 
it out and this could be subject to a case by case evaluation and that is his motion.   



14 
 

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Sullivan.   
 
During discussion on the motion, Chairman McDuffy stated he feels that all Commissioner 
Kelley was talking about were some of the good things and some of the bad things that might 
have happened.  He does not recall Commissioner Fontaine’s name being mentioned.  The 
Chairman indicated if the whole section should not be in the minutes then so be it, however, in 
his opinion, Commissioner Kelley did not do anything wrong.  Chairman McDuffy recalled that 
at the beginning of the meeting he had congratulated Joseph Kelley for being a member of the 
Commission for eight years so if that is the case then perhaps his statements should be taken out 
also.  He indicated it doesn’t make any sense.   
 
Attorney Feodoroff stated that perhaps they should be more careful and close the meeting before 
these kinds of discussions are held but that they should probably stick to the matters they have 
pending before the board.  She stated that they want to keep a record of the meeting but that you 
do not want to defame a person either, especially when that person is not there for any discussion 
and it is not a relevant topic for conversation.  Commissioner Wood asked if this was part of the 
business of the meeting and Attorney Feodoroff stated it was not.  He acknowledged that it was 
said during the time that covers the meeting but asked if it has to do with the business that this 
board is charged with undertaking.  Commissioner Wood stated he is not saying that 
Commissioner Kelley did anything wrong and he is not passing judgment on what Mr. Kelly said 
but wonders if that should be included in the minutes.   
 
Chairman McDuffy stated he feels it is wrong to take it out of the minutes and that it was a part 
of the recorded meeting. 
 
Commissioner Kenney then stated that she would like to amend the motion that it not be stricken 
completely out of the record but that the name Fred Fontaine be stricken to read a member of the 
board.  Commissioner Wood asked if she wanted to put in the line that reads there is one member 
who is always trying to sabotage the integrity of the board and Commissioner Kenney stated that 
Commissioner Kelley said it in public and he didn’t try to hide it so why shouldn’t it be in the 
public record.  Commissioner Wood responded that because he thinks it will be read by others 
and is not part of the business of this board to engage in that type of mongering about another 
member of the board’s character.  He stated it would be equally inappropriate if Fred Fontaine 
stood up and mentioned something derogatory about Bonnie and he would ask for that to be 
stricken.  He stated he does not know whether putting a blank space where Fred Fontaine’s name 
is will fix it.   
 
Chairman McDuffy indicated it is a moot point now where Mr. Kelley is gone and it is over with.  
He stated he does not have a problem with taking Fred’s name out but he feels they are going a 
bit too far. 
 
Commissioner Fontaine stated Joe Kelley is gone but his comment will stay for life and it is his 
name and character. 
 
Commissioner McDuffy stated he understands but asked if they have a right to remove 
something from the minutes that have already been approved.  Attorney Feodoroff stated it can 



15 
 

always be corrected once you find an omission.  It could be due to a clerical error so long as the 
motion is properly made.  She suggested that the most appropriate remedy in order to avoid any 
sort of inferences would be to strike the whole sentence about the saboteur and Commissioner 
Fontaine’s name. 
 
Chairman McDuffy then reviewed that Commissioner Kenney had made a motion for an 
amendment and he seconded her motion for discussion. 
 
Commissioner Wood then reviewed that Commissioner Kenney’s motion was to just take Fred 
Fontaine’s name out but not change the sentence as a whole.  Commissioner Kenney then stated 
that the amendment is to take out just that sentence.   Commissioner Wood stated the amendment 
is taking out the whole sentence that mentions saboteur and mentions integrity of the board. 
 
Ms. Tucker then asked if this conversation should be included in the minutes of this meeting 
because it is all on tape.   
 
Commissioner Wood stated that it probably needs to be on the record because there are motions 
being made and it is appropriate to include this in the record but not to talk in specifics as to the 
language being kept out but to talk in terms of generalities.   
 
Chairman McDuffy reviewed that Commissioner Kelly had made his statements during the 
meeting and as he recalls there was no one from the general public present. 
 
Commissioner Wood then stated the amendment to the motion is to leave the minutes as they are 
with the exception of the sentence that includes Mr. Fontaine’s name and the sentiment about 
sabotage and integrity.  Commissioner Wood then stated that the amendment by Commissioner 
Kenney was to strike the sentence which reads, “He indicated there is one alternate member who 
is always trying to sabotage the integrity of the board and called out Fred Fontaine as being that 
member.”   
 
Commissioner Wood stated he will second Commissioner Kenney’s motion.  
 
Chairman McDuffy asked if there is any further discussion on the amendment only.  With 
Commissioners McDuffy, Sullivan, Wood and Kenney voting in the affirmative and alternate 
Commissioner Fontaine abstaining, the motion carried by vote of 4 to 0. 
 
In reviewing what has just taken place, Commissioner Wood stated the original motion was to 
re-open the vote on the approval of the minutes for the January 18, 2012 License Commission 
meeting and that was allowed.  He stated he made a further motion that a number of sentences 
from the fourth to last paragraph starting with, “He stated that he has seen first-hand….and 
ending with the word efforts.” be stricken.  He reviewed that was seconded by Commissioner 
Sullivan but was not joined by any other Commissioners.  He then stated that Commissioner 
Kenney then voted to amend his original motion and stated that only the sentence ending with 
the word member be stricken and that the rest remain in place.   
 



16 
 

It was requested that Commissioner Wood cross out the sentence referred to on the copy of the 
minutes provided by Commissioner Fontaine which he did.                                                                                     
 
In other business, Chairman McDuffy reviewed that it was brought to his attention after the 
hearing before the board last month involving International Auto Wholesalers that a mistake 
could have been made in the Commission’s decision in only issuing a warning.  He reviewed that 
the law requires the license be revoked if found in violation of the law.    
 
It was requested that the licensee be notified to be at the next meeting. 
 
Commissioner Wood indicated he doesn’t feel he should be brought in on the same violation and 
Officer Uhlman stated a new inspection was done by the RMV and a report submitted.  This is 
on a different date from the original violations reported. 
 
With no further business to come before the Commissioner, the meeting was adjourned. 
 
The Commission will meet again on April 18, 2012. 
 
            Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
            _________________________________  
            Scott H. McDuffy 
            Chairman 
APPROVED: 
 
 
______________________________  
Paul D. Sullivan, Commissioner  
 
 
______________________________  
Bruce G. Dansby, Commissioner 
 
 
______________________________  
Joshua J. Wood, Commissioner 
 
 
______________________________  
Kathy Kenney, Commissioner 
 
 
______________________________  
Fred Fontaine, Alternate Commissioner 



17 
 

 
 
 


